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ITEM NO. 12: PROHIBITION OF GENETICALLY ENGINEERED AND RECOMBINANT
DNA TARO (KALO) (C.C. No. 09-100)

CHAIR JOHNSON: . . .(gavel). . . Aloha. The Economic Development, Agriculture, and Recreation
Committee will reconvene. This is a continuation of last weeks meeting of June 25, 2009.
Thank you for your attendance at today's meeting. Again, we have one Member who is excused
today, that is Member Pontanilla. In attendance this morning also to be joining us shortly will be
Vice-Chair Sol Kaho' ohalahala. We also have Member Molina, thank you for your attendance
this morning. Member Baisa, aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Good morning. And not a voting Member of the Committee, Mr. Bill Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aloha, Madam Chair.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Aloha. And also a non-voting Member of the Committee, Wayne Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Good morning.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you so much. Again for Staff just to reiterate we have Lance, we have
Tammy; and from the Administration, we have Jeff Ueoka, who's from Corporation Counsel,
actually he represents us both. So where we left off last week just to refresh everyone's memory
is that we had not yet concluded with the public testimony. So because we have one Member
who is excused and we have another Member who is, you know, running a little bit late, the
Chair's intent is to continue with public testimony at this time. The individual who we left off
with on, and this is on the Item EAR-12, which is the prohibition of genetically engineered and
recombinant DNA taro or kalo, a measure introduced by Member Medeiros. The subject matter
that's before us is, I'm going to try to conclude this today so that we can move forward with the
item. Anyway, the individual who was last signed up to testify was Mr. John Aquino. Is
Mr. Aquino here this morning? I don't see him coming forward but the Chair will leave public
testimony open until the very last. So if Mr. Aquino does show up he will certainly be granted
the opportunity to testify. The next testifier would be Ms. Kai Nishiki and she will be followed
by Steve Hart. Once again the rules are you have three minutes with one minute to conclude. If
you're affiliated with any organization or you represent any interest group, please just declare
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that as well as state your name for the record. And if everyone would be kind enough to turn off
all their pagers, cellphones to the silent mode. Thank you. Ms. Nishiki, thank you.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. .

MS. NISHIKI: Good morning. My name is Kai Nishiki, speaking on behalf of myself. The right to
grow taro naturally belongs to the public and should never be owned by a corporation or a
university. Please consider the detrimental effects of GMO corn and rice on indigenous cultures.
Corporations like Monsanto sue and bankrupt small family farmers whose non-GMO crops have
been contaminated by neighboring Monsanto fields. The Monsanto reps who testified last week
right here in this Chamber said that they do not believe that crops had been contaminated through
the air. The hundreds of small farmers that Monsanto has sued will be happy to hear that after
spending thousands of dollars on attorney's fees or losing the ability to farm. Monsanto reps
have said that this ordinance will set a dangerous precedent. I believe a dangerous precedent has
already been set with the proliferation of GMO food products in our food supply. Most of the
proponents of GMO research say that it will help people by providing more food or prevent plant
diseases or insect, or prevent insect damage. But if a farmer has to pay for seeds or corms and
they can no longer save seeds or share huli then a farmer is forced to purchase new seeds or
corms every season. The motivation behind GMO is corporate profit and control over our food
supply. Taro health is dependent on healthy soil and clean water. We don't have healthy soil
because of industrial agriculture practices and chemical fertilizers. We don't have access to
clean water because it's under corporate control, and now corporations want control over the
ability to grow food. We have the responsibility to put public health, the environment and our
culture before corporate profits. The native Hawaiian community has withstood invasion, had
their land taken away and have lost access to their natural resources. While our islands are being
paved over with hotels and mansions at least the local people can return to farming. We can
grow our own food and find comfort and connection to our heritage through kalo. Please respect
the culture and keep taro GMO free. Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Ms. Nishiki. Are there any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you very much for your testimony.
MS. NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Steve Hart and he will be followed by Lisa Schattenburg-Raymond.
MR. HART: Hi, I'm Steve Hart. I'm speaking for myself. I want to thank you for continuing this
meeting and we appreciate the effort that the Council and Madam Chair has put into this. I'd like
to make a few points though. The UH professor who had testified earlier that UH doesn't
conduct research on Hawaiian taro, he failed to mention that as recently as a few years ago they
were trying to patent taro and conducted tests on Maui lehua taro. They stopped this not because
of altruistic reasons but because of the public outcry. The fact that the professor omitted this is
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troubling to me 'cause I'm a UH student. Another point I'd like to make is this idea that if the
Council does not pass this resolution that this would somehow lead to an entire GMO ban. And
this is known in philosophy and logic as the slippery slope argument that when one thing
happens then another thing is sure to follow; however, this slippery slope argument also contains
a logical fallacy. This fallacy exists when there is no evidence to connect these chain of events.
The resolution does not include language stating that this is a foothold for a total ban, so to
suggest this is false. One last point, a previous testifier said that to enforce a ban on GMO would
be difficult. This made me think that perhaps we could create new jobs for the GMO
enforcement position. So, thank you for your time . . . and that's it.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Mr. Hart. Are there any questions of the testifier? Thank
you. I really appreciate your testimony. And Ms. Lisa Schattenburg-Raymond and she'll be
followed by Stephanie Seidman.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Aloha, Council Members.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aloha.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: I'm Lisa Schattenburg-Raymond from the Maui Nui Botanical
Gardens. I'm the Executive Director. I'll be speaking as an individual today. I come from a
very scientific family. My brother is a doctorate astrophysics at MIT, my son just got a degree in
geology and geophysics, my father reads Scientific American for pleasure, you know, he's been a
long time subscriber, you know, raised in a household that is very supportive of science. And
what disturbs me about some of the testimony and, and the things surrounding this issue is this
kind of colonial and patronizing attitude of scientists that they know more than, than we do and,
you know, that we should just trust in their knowledge to carry on these kinds of research. And,
and that we are somehow restricting, that this body might be restricting the, their, their research
and that this is not a good thing. And, you know, there's good science and bad science and the,
the way this is going, you know, with the, with researching on, on taro is somebody spoke about
restrictions, you know. What about, I think this is more of a safety measure and, and more of a
conservation of our, particularly of our Hawaiian varieties. Because once, you know, if this
research was ever to be released and, you know, there's no way of controlling it I have a little
story that, about that at the close of my testimony. But one of the things I heard recently on
public radio was the story, this was just a few weeks ago, about India, and they have made a push
to revert 70 percent of their agriculture back to organic. And, you know, all of the modern
agriculture that was, you know, for the last 50 years or so about chemical fertilizers and
pesticides and things like that is not working anymore. The soil is spent, the productivity is
down and it's too costly to maintain this kind of agriculture. So there's this huge, this is not just
a country, this is a continent that has made this decision. So things that we think now are
important, you know, could be a problem in the future and we have to really be forward thinking
on, on these. Jerry Konanui, who's a taro expert and expert in many other Hawaiian issues, told
me a story recently about, he said I went to a baby luau with his mother and they served
pineapple there that was very tasty and she thought, wow, this is really something I'd like to
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grow. So she went to the dumpster behind the area and pulled the, the tops out and took them
home and planted them, and a year or so later Jerry harvested some fruit and took it to a friend
who's a, a researcher and, and she tasted this fruit. And she said where did you get this, this
pineapple? And he said, oh, from my mom and she goes this is not even released to the public,
this, this is still in research. But the fellow who, you know, hosted the luau, you know, served
that, you know, he brought it home from work and served it to, to the public. And this is how
easy something like this can just get out and passed around and, you know, that's just one little
example. And that's why, you know, this kind of research cannot be contained.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: They will, you know, get out and leak out and there's no way of
stopping it. Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Ms. Schattenburg-Raymond. Are there any questions of the
testifier? Seeing none, thank you very much.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Stephanie Seidman followed by Lena Lieding.
MS. SEIDMAN: Good morning, my name is Stephanie Seidman and I'm here to support Bill 09-100
amending Title 20. I'm speaking on behalf of myself. As a conservator of kalo I feel it's very
important that Maui County and the State of Hawaii protect kalo and not sell out to corporate
greed. It is unnecessary to genetically modify kalo. We have not looked into or done enough
research on the kalo varieties that already exist. Today we are, we have almost 80 Hawaiian
varieties of kalo being grown throughout the State. There is a network of taro farmers, of
botanical gardens growing these kalo varieties, and we really need to look at what their
possibilities are because a lot of them can be grown in salt-tolerant areas and up in the uplands.
There's no reason to genetically modify these kalo. They don't have diseases and I just urge the
Council to support this bill. I'd also like to say a lot of false statements were made last week. I
have taro flowers here that I'd like to pass around. Kalo does flower and that's something that
we really worry about. We don't want this genetically modified kalo getting out and flowering
because they do set seed and you can grow them from seed. And also there is a Statewide
network of people growing kalo and there's some false statements made that, you know, there
wasn't different types growing, and, and again I'd just like to urge the Council to support this
bill. Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Stephanie Are there any questions of the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you. The next testifier will be Ms. Lena Lieding and followed...
MS. SEIDMAN: She's, she's sick.

-5-

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, AGRICULTURE, AND
RECREATION COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
June 29, 2009

CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. So following her is Viola Gaskell and following Ms. Gaskell will be
Hokuao Pellegrino. And I would also like to welcome Member Kaho' ohalahala to the meeting.
Aloha. Thank you very much.
MS. GASKELL: Hi. I'm Viola Gaskell and I grew up in Hana and I would just like to testify in support
of the bill and the amendment Title 20. I think that kalo is a very culturally important plant and
I've seen this, like at Hana School we grew taro and made poi and everything. And I just think
that it doesn't need this because people can grow it on their own and people have been
cultivating it for hundreds of years here. And until we do need it why even think about things
like this? Because it may be a precedent but I think that's all right, because if people on Maui
don't want to support GMO foods whether it's for cultural or scientific health reasons then it
should be their choice. I don't think it should be up to corporations like Monsanto whose
interests I don't even understand in the subject, because I think that Monsanto is not really
thinking about farming taro to sell like they do with corn and everything like that. They're just
really afraid of the precedent and I don't think that they have the right to upset everyone who has
cultural and personal interests just because they want to be able to do whatever they want in their
laboratories. And I think that there is a possibility it could get out like Lisa mentioned with
India. Hundreds of thousands of farmers there committed suicide because they couldn't support
their families anymore, 'cause they had to rely on corporations for their seed. And I just think
that it's something that should be up to the people and clearly the kalo farmers are saying that
they don't want this and I think that it should be up to them.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much for your testimony. Any questions of the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you again. Hokuao Pellegrino followed by Victor Pellegrino.
MR. H. PELLEGRINO: Aloha mai kakou . . . (Spoke in Hawaiian). . . Hokuao Pellegrino. Aloha. My
name is Hokuao Pellegrino and I'm a taro farmer from Waikapu in the . . .(spoke in
Hawaiian). . . And I'd like to mahalo you all for hearing this bill and creating this to allow
hopefully a ban on propagation or genetic research on our ancestor . . .(spoke in Hawaiian).. .
kalo. I'm here today to share a different . . . (spoke in Hawaiian). . . a perspective. We've been
hearing a lot of information from scientists and, and that's good. And but I wanted to also share
a Hawaiian perspective on one of the main reasons why kalo may have some issues that we're
looking at. One thing that we're not really looking at is paying attention to a lot of the factors of
why kalo is not grown in Hawaii and that has a lot to do with our aina and our wai, the soil
condition and the lack of water. One thing not mentioned last week that I want to make note of
is that Monsanto uses on an average of 500,000 gallons a day of Na Wai Eha water, and that's
water used from these four streams, Waikapu, Wailuku, Waiehu and Waihee, which is taking
water away from our loi kalo, our kuleana lands of these areas where kalo traditionally once
grew. Another very important issue that I, I wanted to make a note is it doesn't surprise me that
Monsanto has come here to do research and to grow their crops, because our ancestors have lived
here for 2,000 years, have built massive, extensive irrigation systems and agricultural systems
which to me kind of translates to the fertile crescent of the Pacific. And people have come here
to do research because they like the soil condition, they like the abundance of water and we need
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to protect these particular resources and look at some of the other factors of why we are having,
you know, "issues" as Monsanto and other researchers say. I've had the opportunity to work
with Dr. Miyasaka, who was a geneticist working on kalo research at University of Hawaii at
Hilo, and it scares me to see the lack of care that these people have for our, our kuleana to protect
kalo in its traditional form, and that is keeping our kalo varieties, our Hawaiian varieties pure and
not changing the genetic makeup of these varieties. And the fact that we have methods, our
kupuna had methods to protect our kalo and that was keeping the soil in good condition,
fallowing, having an ample supply of water, and these are factors and important ways in which
these folks such as Monsanto are not looking at. They come in and think that there's a problem
and they just want to change the genetic makeup of our Hawaiian varieties versus looking at
other important factors such as soil condition and water. And so I want to make sure that
everybody is aware of some of the other things that are affecting our kalo and that, they also
mention invasive species. To me using that tactic is scary. I think the only invasive species that
we have that's going to affect our kalo is us as, as humans, and we need to be aware of the
decisions that we make. And I'd like to mahalo -MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MR. H. PELLEGRINO: --you again, you all for creating this bill and I support this bill on this, a ban on
GMO kalo. Mahalo.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much. Are there any questions of the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you.
MR. H. PELLEGRINO: Mahalo.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Victor Pellegrino and he will be followed by Scott Crawford, but I don't
believe Scott Crawford is here today. So Todd Suda would be the next testifier.
MR. V. PELLEGRINO: Good morning, everyone. Madam Chair, Chairman, and Bill Medeiros and
County Council, thank you for bringing this bill forward and listening to Maui people regarding
the ban of GMO kalo. Dr. Pang spoke about the precautionary principle last week and he also
brought up the information from the American Academy of Environmental Medicine, a release of
May 19, 2009. And I have submitted copies of that as part of my testimony and I encourage you
all to read those two pages. Also there's a bibliography at the end which covers all of the aspects
of GMO and the dangers. The AAEM, the American Academy of Environmental Medicine was
founded in 1965, and it's an international association of physicians and other professionals
interested in the clinical aspects of humans and the environment. They released a statement for
an immediate moratorium on genetically modified foods and these are four of their major points.
It calls for one, a moratorium on GM food, implementation of immediate long-term safety testing
and labeling of GM foods. Two, it calls for physicians to educate their patients, the medical
community and the public to avoid GM foods. Three, it calls for physicians to consider the role
of GM foods in their patients' diseases, disease processes. Four, it calls for more independent
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long-term scientific studies to begin gathering data to investigate the role of GM foods on human
health. So this precautionary principle that Dr. Pang talked about is very, very important. There
are dangers to eating GM food. Currently, we go to the doctors, we get our urine tested, our
blood tested, cholesterol. One of these days the doctors are going to be saying well,
Mr. Pellegrino, what have you been eating? And I will say this, this and this. Well don't you
know those, that's GMO products, you need to stay away from those because. And that's what
I'm worried about that the, one of the next analyses of the human body is going to be the effects
of GMO on our liver, our kidneys and et cetera. Finally, a couple of years ago I had an
opportunity in Hilo to hear two of the scientists who were at the University of Hawaii planning
to begin studies of GMO and doing scientific studies. They wanted to inject rice genes into our
taro. We know that rice is a food not for diabetics, and kalo already is truly a pure diabetic food.
And I asked the question well do you know anything about this? And they said no, we really
don't know. I said well, you know, rice is not something you want to inject, it's going to change
the nature of taro. Then they said they want to inject wheat -MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MR. V. PELLEGRINO: --and why inject wheat which is also another allergic food? And finally they
want to inject hydrogen peroxide. They're killing our taro, these are scientists. And in the basic
etymology of the word "science" or "scientists" it means basically to know, and we need to know
as Dr. Pang said, we need to have this precautionary principle to know what's in this stuff before
we eat, before it goes into our bodies, before it goes into the food chain So thank you very, very
much and I appreciate your sponsoring this bill.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Mr. Pellegrino. Are there any questions of the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you. The next testifier that I would call is Mr. Scott Crawford, but as I said
earlier I don't believe he's here. So we'll move on to Mr. Todd Suda. Is Todd here today? Not
seeing Todd coming forward, we have Mr. Vincent Mina who is present. And I know the next
testifier Ms. Penny Levin is unable to attend today but she has asked that her testimony be read
into the record.
MR. MINA: Good morning, Madam Chair.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Good morning.
MR. MINA: Good morning. Good morning, Council Members. Thank you for having this hearing
today. I may have put all my testimony, Bill 09-100, is that correct? Was that correct? I'm not
too akamai to all this stuff, I, but if it is incorrect please make that change.
CHAIR JOHNSON: It's, it's actually EAR-12.
MR. MINA: Okay. Okay. Thanks. Okay. So I'm a little bit out of my box this morning, I actually had
a prepared statement here. I wanted to, I'm not paid by anybody to be here, thanks to my wife
-8-

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, AGRICULTURE, AND
RECREATION COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
June 29, 2009

and family and their support of what I do here in the community here. As a farmer of the soil
who grows and harvests plants I'm disappointed what our State agricultural organization, land
grant research institutions and commercial ag operations have testified at this hearing. I
understand though they're safeguarding their ability to do research to alter whatever plant they
choose. It is our position that their proposed end product no way represents the best and highest
interest of the agricultural community at large that relies on our food supply to be safe and be our
medicine. Especially in the coast [sic] , in the case of our host culture staple plant haloa. As
stated in Steven Buhner's book, The Lost Language of Plants, if you, if anybody has never read
this please pick it up, it's a great read. He speaks of our knowing less than 5 percent of what
goes on under the soil. There was also testimony from an agricultural research organization
about it being a humanitarian based research, and I have some documentation regarding the use
of microbial bacteria to deal with the problems they're having in Samoa. It, if it is the case that it
is humanitarian based research then wouldn't the first step to deal with disease problems
confronting our food supply, specifically here in Hawaii with taro, be taken towards research in
finding answers in the 95 percent of what we don't know going on under the soil while
employing the direction of the 5 percent we do know that has merit in supporting the plants
immune system and our overall health? My question then is with the concern that this bill is
being seen as anti-science why is there no talk or action in these disease processes of taro that
speaks to using proven scientific biological protocols along with proven cultural practices that
honors, utilizes and mimics the genetic diversity of plants and soil science? This is not being
done as the first step since the soil is the answer to our agricultural ills is not considered with
these institutions in the first place. Based on all of our, all of your testimonies and policies it is
not their mission, yet the government and community, yet the government and community for
guidance and leadership to solve these problems needed in our agricultural realm look to them.
Relying on genetic diversity of whole agricultural systems isn't perceived to be able to be
economically viable especially to the chemical companies who are tied economically -MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MR. MINA: --to these institutions that pave the way for the pharmaceutical companies. Yet it will be
when we wake up to being essential, yet it will be when we wake up to it being an essential next
step if we want to save what's left of our top soils and turn the tide of our health problems that
plague us as a society. Professor Loudermilk of the National Resource Conservation Services,
the government who toured the Mediterranean Basin in the 1930s to fmd out why civilizations
collapsed found out why they collapsed was that they lost their top soils. We are our food.
Where our food begins is in the soil as stated in this National Geographic feature, the
September 2008 issue, The Future Rests in the Soil Beneath our Feet.
MR. TAGUCHI: Four minutes.
MR. MINA: This is as mainstream as it gets, folks.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Vincent, can you wrap it up?
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MR. MINA: Yeah. I'll finish up. Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thanks.
MR. MINA: We need to protect our genetic diversity. A genetic diverse population has genetic
flexibility and in including, a fundamental ecological principle states that diversity leads to
stability. So I want to thank you guys for, you know, I was very impressed here the other day. I
got, I got here from the mainland, came up to the meeting afterwards and I was really impressed
by how you folks are truly taking this on and, and educating yourselves. So thank you so much
for, for doing what you're doing.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you, Vincent. Are there any questions of the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Question.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Madam Chair. And good morning, Mr. Mina, nice to have
you here.
MR. MINA: Good morning, Bill.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for coming back today. I realize you're an organic
farmer, is that correct?
MR. MINA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And do you by any chance grow dry land kalo?
MR. MINA: I do as, in the garden situation but not in commercial, that is as a commercial venture.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So and I know you have a great knowledge about soil conditions
and how important the soil is to growing anything. So what would, you know, I know your
concern as expressed would be, you know, to stay organic as long as you can. Now how do you
propose to do that, you know, if there's other kind of farming going around?
MR. MINA: Oh, I see. As far as contamination aspects. Yeah, well that's, that's definitely an issue.
Regarding any, any kind of contamination from any other practice, I know there's a right to farm
argument that happens and yet the bottom line for any farmer who wants to grow food how it's
deemed naturally that is an issue. You have, you have definitely contamination issues. It's not
seen as contamination it's seen as a right to farm. And, yeah, that's why I'm here today, you
know, I mean I feel that there's a need for people to be educated around that we have an ability to
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deal with these things biologically, we don't need to alter, we don't need to engineer. And, and
so that's why, that's why I asked the question, why isn't, why isn't the research being done if this
is a humanitarian issue? Why isn't it being done with, in ways that we know we can deal with it
naturally?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Mina. And, yeah, you know, having been to your,
some of your sustainability talks it's reassuring to have organic farmers like you. Thank you for
being here this morning.
MR. MINA: Thank you very much, appreciate it.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Madam Chair. . . .(change tape, start 1B). . .
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. Are there any further questions of the testifier? Seeing none, thank you -MR. MINA: Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: --very much, Mr. Mina. Our next testimony will be given on behalf of Penny
Levin and it'll be read into the record, and so there won't be any questions that you can ask of
this testifier but this is Penny Levin's testimony read by Lisa Schattenburg-Raymond.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Well actually the testimony is like four pages so it's, it's...
CHAIR JOHNSON: Just do the best you can.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Well I'm, I'm, it was submitted in, in writing. I mean copies
were made and it has been submitted to all the Council Members.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. So would you rather not read it into the record?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Yeah. It's...
CHAIR JOHNSON: All right.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: 'Cause I won't do it justice.
CHAIR JOHNSON: All right.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: It's excellent.
CHAIR JOHNSON: The Chair respects that and we do have Ms. Levin's written testimony, so I would
ask that you please consider that and I'm sorry that she was unable to testify. And thank you for
offering to read her testimony into the record.
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MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you. The next testifier will be Mr. Jay Ellis and he will be followed by John
Anderson. Is Jay Ellis here or John Anderson? Seeing neither one of those individuals coming
forward, Mr. Brad Jeffries is the next individual. And he is the last individual signed up to testify
so if there's anyone in the audience that wishes to come forward and offer testimony, please sign
up at the Secretary's desk.
MR. JEFFRIES: Good morning, everybody. I'm Brad, I'm speaking as an individual. Thanks for your
patience, I'm a very nervous public speaker. This is a very important issue and I felt compelled
to come warn the County Council about genetically modified organisms and the companies that,
that make them. We can learn from experience that the genetically, that companies like
Monsanto will bring GMOs to Hawaii and the bees, excuse me, I'm really nervous. What's
happening in, in Midwest America is that two farmers next to each other, one is buying a GMO
corn and the other is not. Bees come from one farmer's property and pollinate the next farmer's
corn. The second farmer now has genetically modified corn even though he didn't purchase it.
The GMO corn is, is protected by patent and what's happening in Midwest America is these
GMO corporations are suing the farmers for having and selling the GMO product even though
they didn't buy it. This, your bill protects a traditional Hawaiian way of life. And what you're,
in my mind, what you're preventing is a really large corporation suing a traditional Hawaiian
farmer for having and selling or using a patented product if you can imagine a really large
company with a in-house law firm and the money to hire outside law firms to sue a simple
Hawaiian person farming for their own food. Your bill prohibits the testing, propagation,
cultivation, or raising, planting, growing, introducing, or genetically, or releasing genetically
engineered or recombinant DNA kalo. I would also ask the Council to further protect the
Hawaiian farmer from, from cross contamination from another county or even from GMO pollen
from the states or another county in Hawaii. But your bill is great but please take it one step
further to protect the farmer from cross-pollination as I've described. Also I want to ask you
guys to please do some research. This issue that I brought up could easily be researched on the
internet. You could simply type in the letters GMO and the word litigation and get a history
about, about GMO companies suing farmers. Thank you very much.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you, Mr. Jeffries. Are there any questions of the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much for your attendance. And you did just fine. We have another individual
who signed up to testify and excuse me if I massacre your name, Kaweaehi Pundyke?
MR. PUNDYKE: Hello. My name is Kaweaehi Pundyke. I want to just first of all thank you for
introducing, introducing this measure and stepping up to the plate and, and really taking a
proactive viewpoint to this genetically modifying kalo situation. I just wanted to talk about a
couple different things. First of all, I was here last week Friday and I heard the doctor from
Monsanto speaking about how it was, there seems to be no problems with GMO, they haven't
had those problems, there's no scientific basis to, to say that they shouldn't do it. But on the
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other side there's really no substantial scientific proof that it does not harm anything else, it does
not get out any further. I also heard him speak about they quarantine the different corn varieties
that they were speaking about or he was speaking about and that so it's safe. But, you know, I
kind of wonder what the defmition of quarantine is or when it's used because is it a
self-contained facility that is quarantined? Or is it an open field that is a mile down the road
from the next field and that's considered a quarantine? Because my understanding is that the
pollens float through the air for up to seven miles and can pollinate another corn plant. Now I
could be wrong but that's my understanding and if that's the case it's not really quarantined if it's
not an enclosed facility. And it's not fit for human consumption but what about if that pollen
travels to a backyard everyday person like you and me with planting some corn just to eat a little
bit of corn but that pollen goes and germinates there and it crosses in that respect then I think we
got some serious issues and some serious problems. And who's to say that that wouldn't happen
with the kalo? We cannot do that. The other woman that I heard speak on Friday talked about
keeping it in context, keeping it in the context of culture and, and we should stick to that basis.
And if that's the case then that's fine, then we shouldn't have even have talked about corn in the
first place, it's like a red herring, we're just going off the track, we just talking about kalo, we're
just asking to please not, we don't want this genetically modified kalo. Let's just stick to the, to
what we're discussing here, let's not make it too broad, let's just stick to the kalo, let's not bring
anything else into it. But I just wanted to say thanks. I heard a few countries through
Mr. Nishiki's research there -MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MR. PUNDYKE: --that, that there's countries that have, have banned GMO and I have to ask myself,
why? And I kind of wonder why a person that, that is in charge of the whole, basically Hawaii
Pacific region has no idea why those other countries are banning these genetically modified
products. There must be some type of problem or perhaps there, there is not substantial proof or
facts to say that it is safe, and I think that's why the Federal government puts certain guidelines
together in order to protect the people and, and plants and -MR. TAGUCHI: Four minutes.
MR. PUNDYKE: --everything in general so that it is a safe product. And until we come to that place
where we can assure that this is a safe thing I think we should be very proactive in this place.
Am I done or I have more time?
CHAIR JOHNSON: No.
MR. PUNDYKE: I'm done.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. Thank you.
MR. PUNDYKE: Okay. I'm done.
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CHAIR JOHNSON: If, are there any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, I really appreciate your
testimony. Thank you very much for coming. Are there any other individuals who are in the
audience who have not yet signed up to testify but who wish to offer testimony before the
Committee? Yes, sir, if you could come forward and state your name for the record and then you
can sign up on the paper later. You can, you can just give your testimony and then we'll have
you sign up afterwards.
MR. KUKINI: Mahalo.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you.
MR. KUKINI: Aloha no. My name is Kimo I'm from Wailuku side down down Paukukalo. I live
here all my life, I come from 11 generations. The short period of time I've been here listening to
this testimony it's awesome and it's true. You know when GMO came out they had it down at
Baldwin Park with Professor Pang and that other professor from the mainland. So they came
down here and they speaked [sic] about this, I thought this was over. I lucky God brought the
news yesterday to me and told me to come up here to see what's going on. You know the sad
part these people come, this corporation come from the far side bringing all their leftover here,
all the disease come down, share for destroy us, it's sad. Organic been here long time before our
ancestors, yeah. Our kalo we didn't have no problem with, papayas, fruits, vegetables, akua,
bring 'em to us to kokua our family, to take care. But sad these outsiders, they bring all these
things. You know, we have enough chemicals already from HC&S, the spraying destroying all
our grounds. Not only that going out get places and destroying our ancestors graves. The truth
is as that one brother, well, when I walked in here two of you brothers just spoke from the
mainland. Blessing of them, yeah, to come and share their manao with us down here about the
truth. As that one say, yeah, they going patent, when we go out there and grow it for our families
then they take us to the suit, why, because they got a lot of money to bring in these attorneys.
But I belong to the Hawaiian Kingdom government, I've been with the Hawaiian Kingdom
government for five years now. And it's not for one, it's for all to bring out the truth, to share the
truth. A lot of these things has been taken away from us in many different ways, wrong ways.
That is sad. But it's out and about, we're here, we're coming and it's opening for everybody, it's
not for one. This world is about one, that's where we came from, we all one big ohana. It's time
that we wake up, see the light and be that one instead of who's better than the next, who know
more than the next, nobody does 'cause we all do know things that others don't know. But if we
all put it together and stand together as that one instead of only wala'au about it. All I ask let's
be that one, enough of this destruction, corruption. I think we've been through it long enough to
stop all of this.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MR. KUKINI: Mahalo.
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CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much. Are there any questions of the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you for your testimony. Now is there anyone else before the Chair closes public
testimony? Is there anyone else in the audience that wishes to testify who has not previously
testified? Seeing none, the Chair will close public testimony and will also receive into the record
all of the written testimony if there are no objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .

CHAIR JOHNSON: Members, it is ten minutes to 10:00. I, because we've had the testimony and
because I know that you've not had an opportunity to read a lot of the things that have been
handed in, and I believe there's an additional handout that will come during our recess, I would
like to break. Do you believe 15 minutes is sufficient time?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. All right. So at five minutes after 10:00 the Committee will reconvene.
Members, we are in recess until 10:05. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS: 9:50 a.m.
RECONVENE: 10:10 a.m.
CHAIR JOHNSON: . . .(gavel). . . Aloha. The Economic Development, Agriculture, and Recreation
Committee will reconvene. Members, the subject matter before us, we only have one item which
we've just concluded public testimony on and that is EAR-12, which is the prohibition of
genetically engineered and recombinant DNA taro or kalo. This regards a communication
09-100, from Councilmember Bill Kauakea Medeiros, transmitting A BILL FOR AN
ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 20, MAUI COUNTY CODE, TO PROHIBIT
GENETICALLY ENGINEERED AND RECOMBINANT DNA TARO OR KALO. The purpose
of the proposed bill is to prohibit any person from testing, propagating, cultivating, raising,
planting, growing, introducing or releasing genetically engineered or recombinant DNA kalo.
And, Members, if there's no objection because Mr. Medeiros is not a Member of our Committee
but because this is his legislative bill that he has sent forward for our consideration, I would ask
that you allow the Chair to turn the microphone over to him so that he may address us and
explain the bill. And I believe that you, because of the Sunshine Law we were not permitted to
hand out the revised bill during the break, it's just been distributed by Staff now. So,
Mr. Medeiros, if you could just go over the changes in the newly revised bill. Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Madam Chair. And I think if the Members of this
Committee look at the revised bill that was just handed out. And if you go to Page 2 of the bill
and under Section 20.38.030, Prohibitions, we added to that prohibition list "transport" which
comes after "introduce". And it was brought to our attention that transport would be a very
important part of the prohibition because there is evidence and experiences in different areas that
through transport much of the contamination takes place. And it's referred to as biological
pollution but what happens is, you know, contamination of organic farmers' fields have been
known to substantially be damaged and ruin farmers' organic crops from GE products being
transported via vehicles that come from the GE industry and farms, particularly via seed spillage
or blown from passing trucks, from shared equipment or carried onto the farm by animals and
birds. So there's a number of studies in a report from the Center for Food Safety that identifies
this contamination via cross pollination with transport being the major problem with the release
of GMO into nature. So that was one change that we made. Then if you go further down to
20.38.050, Administrative Rules, the Director of Environmental Management may adopt
administrative rules to implement this chapter pursuant to Chapter 91, Hawaii Revised Statutes.
And this, you know, gives the Director of the Department the ability to adopt administrative rules
so that the implementation can take place. And then finally on the section following that
20.38.060, Administrative Enforcement, we just renumbered that section because of the changes
that we made. So that's a new numbered section but still falls under administrative enforcement.
And those were the changes that are part of this revised bill, Madam Chair. And I thank you for
this opportunity.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. And I think because you also introduced this I think because the viewing
audience is not privileged to be able to look at the entire bill, if you wish to just give a brief
explanation of why you brought this forward and the mechanism that you chose to introduce this
measure, I think it might be helpful for members of the viewing audience and then it will just set
the stage for comments from both Administration as well as our Corporation Counsel. Thank
you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Madam Chair. Yes. This started back last year when I
brought forward a resolution to support the State Legislature bill to also pretty much do the
same, to ban GMO taro. And, and the State legislation did not go forward, did not pass but we
did submit our resolution and subsequent to that the Big Island of Hawaii, the Hawaii County did
come up with their bill and ordinance regarding GMO, banning GMO taro. So from much of the
farmers, the taro farmers in Maui County, especially in areas like East Maui where I represent
Keanae, and Wailua Nui, even as far as Kipahulu they were all very concerned about the
potential to somehow molecularly start to manipulate the plant itself. And we have heard that a
lot of times GE work on plants is irreversible, or you can't recall it once it's in nature and that,
that brings a really serious concern. But I think most so the concern that I had in introducing this
is that this is really first of all a cultural matter. Hawaiians, as it's been testified to, consider the
kalo, the taro plant very significant to the Hawaiian people. The Hawaiians, you know, brought
that plant with them, that's how important it was. And to sustain a taro plant in a 2,000 mile
journey on a double-hull canoe and be able to get it here and plant it shows the significance and
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the importance it was to our ancestors that first arrived here. And I think we had heard testimony
today from a very educated person, that Hokuao Pellegrino, who went to University of HawaiiHilo, and studied that this, this plant has many significance, and one of it is it is considered by
Hawaiians like the ancestor of the Hawaiian people. And so to not protect it or not preserve it
would be for us that are Hawaiians, the kanaka maoli and even for those that are non-Hawaiians
but see the significance in the taro plant, we would not be taking care of what we call our
kuleana, our responsibility to protect the taro, the kalo. So there's a lot of things involved and
we tried to craft our bill according to what the Hawaii County did. We did make some changes
or some additions that would strengthen our bill as far as what was included. We did realize that
as far as enforcement it would be a challenge because this is something new. We don't have, you
know, a Department of Agriculture in the County. But we felt that the primary importance of this
bill I felt was to be a preventative measure before we can even get to, to enforcement. Because if
we can have an ordinance and law out there that prevents, you know, GMO kalo testing and so
forth then we have done a part of the important part that needs to be done. And I felt that
working on the enforcement later would be a responsibility of all of us, both the Council and the
Administration. So being that this is how important it is and sometimes it's hard to explain to
people that didn't grow up learning this importance and I just want to share a short story from
my own family, Madam Chair, if you will allow me.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Certainly.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: At our home, you know, both in Hana and all the times I spent in
Keanae, my mother and my grandmother it was always very important and, and we always had a
bowl of poi on our kitchen table. And anytime everybody sat down for dinner and we were
going to partake of the poi my mother and grandmother would uncover it, but before that it was
explained to us that there would be no negative speaking of anybody during the dinner when the
poi bowl was open, that the conversation at the table would be all positive and with plenty of
aloha. And as we partake of the poi bowl, my mother used to continuously keep the bowl clean,
because it's important that you didn't, what we say kapulu the bowl which make it messy. And
that's how important it was and that's what was passed down through the generations about the
importance of poi. It wasn't just another food item on the Hawaiian menu, it was more than that.
And, you know, today the next generation, you know, my sister still lives in Hana and has our old
family house, she continues that. She'll always have a very large bowl of poi on her table all the
time, it's not something that she prepares for one particular meal, it's always there. So, you
know, I just wanted to share that that this is something that is very cultural, very significant to the
Hawaiian people. And I think we, as a Council, and, you know, I ask my colleagues to support
this. It's important for us to support it because the Hawaiian people have not asked for very
much throughout the history of these islands; in fact, they have shared and gave things away
more than they ever received anything. So the Hawaiian people through the kalo farmers are
now asking, you know, that please, please help them preserve this very significant plant, this
very significant staple of the Hawaiians. And it's not only enjoyed by the Hawaiians but it's
enjoyed by many other cultures and it's throughout the world that it's grown. And if you grew
up in rural Hawaii way back when I grew up there was no Gerber's baby food. The baby food
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was poi and, and all the children ate that, and it strengthened them and, and, you know, it, it was
very nutritious. And I think, you know, we heard Mr. Pellegrino also shared that it's a very good
food item for people with diabetes. So that's another important part of its nutritious component.
So this is brought forward also when the State Legislature talked about preempting the County
from any kind of legislation regarding GMO foods. And because the Big Island had their bill
and ordinance in place they could not include the Big Island in that legislation and we want to be
proactive as, as, you know, some of the testifiers have said and join the Big Island, the Hawaii
County in providing and producing this bill that if passed will become ordinance so that we can
also disallow State Legislature from preempting our right to legislate for our own County and
our taxpayers. So this is very important, Madam Chair, for all of us in Maui County and I, I
think we need to take this proactive step. I think we need to be brave. This isn't something
popular to do but this is something right to do. And so I ask my colleagues once again to please
support me and this bill so that we can move it forward to the full Council where we have nine
Members being able to deliberate on it. So I really appreciate this opportunity, Members, for
allowing me to do this and, Madam Chair, mahalo for this. Aloha.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Member Medeiros. Before turning this over to Corporation
Counsel for comment and then also the Administration, I'd like to acknowledge the attendance of
Member Pontanilla. Good morning, Member Pontanilla. . . .(change tape, start 2A). . . And a
Member, but a non-voting Member of the Committee, Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, Madam Chair.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you for your attendance. Members, I would like Mr. Ueoka to just briefly
give an overview of the bill or at least just if you have any questions of him as to form and
legality, I'd just like him to address that particular issue. Thank you.
MR. UEOKA: Chair, at this time I have no statement. We did sign, approved as to form and legality.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. UEOKA: And if you have any questions I'm more than -CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. UEOKA: --welcome to answer them. Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: That's fine. I just thought I would offer you an opportunity to make your
comments. I would like to acknowledge Ms. Cheryl Okuma from the Administration,
Department of Environmental, Public Works and [sic] Environmental Management. If you could
please give your comments?
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MS. OKUMA: Yes, thank you. Good morning, Committee Chair Johnson, Committee Members. I
have a statement that I will present but I would like to present that to you. Proposed bill, a bill
for an ordinance amending Title 20, Maui County Code, to prohibit genetically engineered and
recombinant DNA taro (kalo) proposes that the Department of Environmental Management
enforce against violations of this proposed bill. We take no position on the bill itself; however,
please be advised that the Department of Environmental Management does not have the
expertise, staff or the mandate by Charter to deal with inspection and enforcement regulations
related to agricultural produce. This Department is in no position to enforce the bill should it
become law. I also have a statement that I will submit but I would like to read that into the
record. This is from Mayor Charmaine Tavares. I have reviewed a copy of the subject bill and
note that administrative enforcement is provided for in Section 20.30.050. In this case, the
Director of the Department of Environmental Management is provided the authority to enforce a
proposed prohibition of genetically engineered and recombinant DNA taro. Please be aware that
neither the Department of Environmental Management nor any of the administrative departments
of the County of Maui have the expertise or the staff available to enforce laws or regulations
related to genetically engineered and recombinant DNA taro (kalo). The Police Chief Yabuta, I
know, had submitted his written statement and he just wanted me to let you know that that is part
of the record as well too. And for those who are not aware, the Department of Environmental
Management handles waste basically, wastewater and solid waste. Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you. Members, are there any questions of Ms. Okuma?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: . . .(Inaudible). . .
CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank, thank you, Madam Chair. Good morning, Madam Director.
You mentioned that we don't have the expertise or personnel to enforce a bill like this. So who,
if not the County, then who would be the, in your, in your opinion the appropriate agency to
enforce, that could do some type of enforcement on a bill like this?
MS. OKUMA: You know, this is so way outside the expertise. As I sit here I hesitate to even opine on
that. I mean I could give you some indication that, you know, I'm thinking it's Department of
Ag or perhaps DLNR but I may be speaking out of step in that we, we do not have the expertise
to even make that determination. And especially having sat through a day and a half of
testimony and hearing how much science there is involved in, in this on all sides I, I'm not in a
good position to even comment on that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Can you give us a ballpark figure if, if we show, or if your
Department or the Mayor chose to enforce this what, what kind of cost or positions, how many
positions would be needed to enforce...
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MS. OKUMA: As I sit here, I couldn't even tell you 'cause again this is way outside of our expertise to
even begin to opine on that, to begin to even guess on that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. I notice we're on, this issue of
enforcement has reared, reared its head and I guess it's going to continue to so might as well ask
the question now. We had at the last time we had testimony somebody from the Prosecutor's
Office come, it's one of the prosecutors. And he had some very serious reservations and had
some suggestions and he wanted to let us know that they didn't feel that they have the ability to
prosecute this kind of a case. Was concerned about actually what it prohibited, needed
defmitions and had all kinds of suggestions about the bill. So I'm kind of interested in
Corp. Counsel's reaction to that testimony.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you. We did not send a bill to the Prosecuting Attorney's Department for review.
In our opinion we felt it was form, as to form and we approved that to form and legality I should
say. Whether or not, or the, I guess the problem the prosecutors see in the bill, maybe we could
address them or this body could advise us to address them.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. Do you think that it would be appropriate to do that before
we move this out or that we get that somewhere along the way?
MR. UEOKA: I think that would be in your prerogative. I think we could work it out either way.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you. Yes, before, because I just wanted to clarify something. Because this
is basically, as Member Medeiros stated, a preemptive measure and because it was disclosed that
there is no genetic testing or any GMO taro, I guess, projects that are going on in Maui County,
how critical is it really to look at this huge problem or, you know, the specter of enforcement and
manpower and all this? You know I mean you know because of the fact that this is a preemptive
measure generally what, what would, or what should the level of concern be on the part of this
Committee?
MR. UEOKA: That's a difficult question. I guess I'll leave it at it would be up to the Committee as to
how important it being prosecuted would be to this Committee or how important it would be or
how likely they see it being, needing to go to court on a criminal level.
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CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. And, and to Ms. Okuma, my question would be in regard to what I just said
to Corporation Counsel. If sending a letter simply acknowledging if somebody brought to you
all the evidence or the factual information showing that they had conclusive proof that this was
occurring, would sending a letter from your Department just noting that this information has
been received, would that be a big huge imposition on the part of your Department?
MS. OKUMA: Well, I think the problem, first of all, is we don't have the expertise or the staff available
to handle this kind of, this, this particular situation. But the other part of it too is I feel that we
need to let people know that we cannot enforce it for those reasons I've just stated.
CHAIR JOHNSON: So you...
MS. OKUMA: So, so the question about what people can expect of us is, is as it's stated in the bill is
simply not realistic.
CHAIR JOHNSON: So sending a letter is not within your scope of capability?
MS. OKUMA: Well, even at that I wonder, you know, the problem is the way the bill is written people
are going to expect something of us, and what they're going to expect is enforcement because
now that's in black and white. And I guess I'm sitting here saying we don't have the expertise,
we don't have the staffmg, it's outside of our mandate, we can't do it.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Is it that you can't do it or is that you are unwilling to do it?
MS. OKUMA: We can't do it.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you. Member Pontanilla followed by Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. This is for Corporation Counsel. You know
throughout my career over here, you know, this is the first that I've heard that Prosecuting
Attorneys coming to this Council testifying in regards to any ordinance. And, you know, I fmd it
very interesting the things that he pointed out like the prohibition, the penalty, administrative
enforcement. I know all of these things are very important. Have you, you probably don't, but
have come across where prosecuting attorneys come to this Chambers to testify on any
ordinance?
MR. UEOKA: I've been here way less than you but no, I haven't heard of that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. And the, the way the ordinance is written it's
strictly for kalo?
MR. UEOKA: That is my understanding, yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you. Member Kaho'ohalahala followed by Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. My first question is that was anything
submitted by the Prosecuting Attorney's Office? I mean I know he, he stood there to give
testimony but did, was any information or...
CHAIR JOHNSON: To my knowledge there was nothing submitted in writing and he was requested to
be here by the Administration, by Ms. Sheri Morrison, not by any Member of this Committee or
by the Chair.
VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: My only question of anything submittal, submitted was to
hopefully take a look at some of those concerns, and if they were things that we could actually
amend in the bill it would be something we might want to consider. But at this point then we'd
have to go back to the records, I assume.
CHAIR JOHNSON: And, and, you know, possibly should this bill pass out of this Committee what I
would be looking at is if there are any meaningful amendments or suggestions to improve it at
first reading. That would also be a possibility to provide that and then it would give Member
Medeiros or this Committee time to really research and see if those changes are appropriate and
if those amendments are necessary. Member Molina, oh, was that all your question, Mr. -VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
CHAIR JOHNSON: --Kaho'ohalahala? Kaho'ohalahala. Sorry about that, you're a mouthful, what can
I say.
VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I'm a mouthful?
CHAIR JOHNSON: I know. Your name
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Question for Director Okuma. Madam
Director, did you have any, did you or a representative have any prior discussions with
Councilmember Medeiros or his staff with regards to this bill? And the reason I ask that
because, you know, of the stance you have taken about the enforceability aspect of the bill.
Where there discussions? Did your offices work and try to see...
MS. OKUMA: I, I was only aware of this bill last week and so in terms of the preparation of the bill the
answer is no. I was only aware once it was posted on the agenda and at that time I did have a
discussion with Councilmember Medeiros to express the very thing that you're hearing today.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. I think this is why we're in sort of a quandary here, Madam
Chair. I think maybe if, you know, there might have been some communication earlier between
the two parties, and we could have hashed out this issue here with enforcement. But we're here
today so anyway I can, well, I'm not going to comment any further on this part. Thank you,
Madam Chair.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and just for your information I believe Mr. Medeiros did introduce
this, the way it came to the Committee was as a communication item, and there was every
opportunity to communicate with the Chair once that item came forward because it is a public
agenda. Therefore, it's incumbent both on, you know, Administration to communicate to the
Council and the Council to communicate back. And there have been other instances where that
has been lacking so I will not put that on Mr. Medeiros. Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. I think that, and I can speak for myself
and nobody else, that of course we understand the importance of what we're trying to do here. I,
I don't think there's any questions in the minds of any of us about we want to protect our native
Hawaiian kalo and we understand its importance, its cultural significance. You know I can tell
similar stories like Member Medeiros about my mother-in-law who is native Hawaiian and
always had a bowl of poi on her table. And you just, you know, it was part of the, the kitchen
table, you expected it. So, you know, I think we all have this orientation but what we're
concerned about here is crafting a law that we can live with, and we want to be careful. We all
know as we craft laws that don't cause more problems and we are famous for crafting laws that
we cannot enforce. I can think of quite a few of them right off the top of my head. So if
enforcement is an issue then maybe we want to deal with this issue. If we cannot put the
responsibility for this in the Office of Environmental Management, is there someplace else that
we can put it? Have we looked at options? And can anybody give, give us any? I'm very open
to that.
CHAIR JOHNSON: I, I totally understand your question and to follow up on it I guess I would defer to
Mr. Ueoka, because you heard the concerns expressed by Ms. Okuma with regard to the
Administration. Is there any prohibition in the Charter that specifically prohibits her Department
from enforcement of this particular ordinance or any similar ordinances?
MR. UEOKA: I wouldn't say there's a prohibition anywhere in the Charter prohibiting her Department
from enforcing this ordinance.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. And in the past we have passed measures that we, we, I guess, give the
authority through ordinance, but as long as there's no direct prohibition that would be in
violation of the Charter, if the Committee chooses we can and the Administration can, through
the adoption of administration rules, find a mechanism to address this, that's my understanding.
And then if budgetary concerns would be appropriate, the Administration may come back to us.
Is that correct, Mr. Ueoka?
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MR. UEOKA: Yes, that would be my understanding.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you. Member Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. The other day I was reading the paper regarding a
proposed bill that was introduced by Senator English as well as Representative Carroll in regards
to genetic engineering of kalo, the prohibition of that. And one of the things that they or in the
paper they mentioned about a sunset date, I think was like four years, that they couldn't do any
testing. I, you know, I, I can be corrected, you know, I saw four years that was written in the
paper. I don't know if something in that nature, you know, if we're looking at going forward
with an ordinance such as this that we, you know, a sunset date would be considered. And the
reason why I say that is that some of the things that, you know, we all hear if anything should
happen to kalo then we have this ordinance. There's no way of going back to ensure that we can
at least find out, you know, what can be done to save the crop. So, you know, I, I just want to
provide you with that comment and what I read in the paper in regards to a proposed bill that was
introduced last, this past session. Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And I really appreciate that because it's my understanding the reason that
that was being done was as a compromise measure to actually move the issue forward. We have
a little bit different approach here in that it is a preemptive measure in that it's sort of tantamount
to opening Pandora's box. We would prefer not going down that road and so containment is not
an issue right now, because there is no experimentation going that has been admitted by
Monsanto. So the Chair frankly does not see this as a giant, huge impediment to moving this
issue forward. That's my personal opinion. You know because usually when you're dealing with
enforcement it's dealing with an ongoing consistent problem like banning alcohol in our parks.
That is always going to be problematic for enforcement. So I see this as something just as we
passed a bill out that prohibited the exhibition of citations. How much enforcement has existed
on that bill? Zero. Because we made it very clear, do not break the law, and the people who
testified said they would abide by that, they will not break the law. So I, you know, I, I respect
the position of the Administration but I think it is being blown out of proportion in regard to the
purpose and intent of this legislation which is preemptive. Would you allow Mr. Victorino to
speak first? Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I'll, I'll let him go. . . . (inaudible). . .
CHAIR JOHNSON: No, no. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. I've sat here, you know, just a little while in all, of the
other day and, Madam Chair, I, I see where we are heading with this and conceptually and I, I
like the idea. The question I have is to the Administration, to both the Department and
Corp. Counsel. To the Department my first question, you said you're unable to enforce these
rules as they are being brought forth, am I correct in saying that?
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MS. OKUMA: Yes. And maybe I can clarify as well too.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Please. If Madam Chair would allow that?
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, certainly.
MS. OKUMA: We don't see that we have the legal authority on the Charter. When you look at the
Charter our Charter speaks to managing waste as which as you know very well is wastewater and
solid waste. That is how we are set up as an organization. That is, those are the areas of our
expertise. The concern here is what we have said, we don't have the expertise let alone the
resources, the people, the money, whatever's needed to enforce in this area if that's the
expectation. I clearly do hear that this is as a preventive measure, but what I'm sitting here
telling you today is we are not in a position to enforce should someone test this.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And I understand that and I thank you. Going to
Corp. Counsel, beside going to the prosecuting attorney and let's leave them off to the side for
right now. If we push, bring this forward as is and maybe some small amendment changes, and
give the Department the proper resources, and again that would be the, part of the equation is the
proper resources, expertise, whatever they needed, do you see the inability by Charter, now I'm
going back to the Charter now, in which Ms. Okuma has stated that we could not, that
Department could not enforce? That's a trick question but I didn't mean to make it a trick
question, I'm sorry. But I really want to know. I mean I think people want to know right now.
It's become, and enforceability I'm not worried about. I just want to know that if we say they do
it, they can do it. I think that's the only question people want to know. If and if the Charter
prohibits or you need to go back and check the Charter but I want clear, a clear definition as far
as what you feel enforcement by that Department for this matter.
MR. UEOKA: As Director Okuma stated it, the Charter does not directly charge the Department of
Environmental Management with the prohibition of genetically engineered and recombinant
DNA taro (kalo). It, no department is specifically charged that in the Charter. Our Department's
understanding is it's, the County can through its powers enforce or I'm sorry, prohibit this.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. UEOKA: Under the Charter we would say that, yes, the Department of Environmental
Management could enforce this provision.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: They would probably . . . the Department that most closely fit
what we're trying to accomplish here. If you looked at all our other departments, Environmental
Management would be the Department that we could say, yes, you're the Department that we
will put, leave you in charge of this enforcement issue.
MR. UEOKA: Yeah. None, none of the departments are a perfect fit.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, right.
MR. UEOKA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And so I'm trying to say as we look at it this would be the
Department that closely fits to what we're asking to be accomplished here?
MR. UEOKA: Yes. Or if you decided it would go somewhere else I'm, that would be, the Council
could do that also.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But, okay, I, I don't want to go there, start trying to pick
somebody else, you know what I mean. I think we're close enough. And the last question I
have, with the proper resources and manpower do you feel that we gave the Department that
direction then enforceability would be able to be achieved and not have to go to the Prosecuting
Attorney? I guess prosecuting, I get kind of nervous when I start going to the Prosecuting
Attorney side of the world, you know what I mean. It may have to come at times but
enforceability?
MR. UEOKA: I'm, I can't say for the Department. It's, it'd be their, it'd be a tough job and it'd be
Ms. Okuma's tough job for a while. And the way the law or the ordinance is written, you know,
it's either, it's either/or, I mean not, sorry, it's, you can do prosecution, criminal prosecution,
administrative enforcement or both. Or, you know, one or, you know, one or the other or both
right now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Thank you. Then with that, Ms. Madam Chair, the
only comment I will make and I, I support basically what we're trying to achieve here is maybe
written response from the Prosecuting Attorney's Office in regards to what they, and I know they
spoke to us, right? But nothing in writing 'cause that makes it kind of arbitrary. We heard things
and now we're trying to figure if they, they fit or not, and I know you guys brought in some
changes and I see the changes here. But I would like to see and, and I'm not a voting Member so
it doesn't affect this now, so it doesn't make a difference. But prior to coming to first reading, I
would like to see a written response from the Prosecuting Attorney's Office in regards to
enforceability and what they perceive this bill, when we take criminal action if that was
necessary.
CHAIR JOHNSON: And...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you. And the Chair will direct Staff to see if we can send out a follow-up
letter . . .(inaudible). . . perhaps working with Councilmember Medeiros as well, we may seek
some written comments. Now, Member Medeiros?
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Madam Chair. I want to direct my questions now to the
Director of Environmental Management who cites the Charter as reason why she can't do it or
her, not she personally but her Department. In the Charter under the description and duties it
says control of pollution. Now in many of the reports regarding GMO kalo cross-contamination
and all of that is referred to as biological pollution. So what kind of control of pollution is your
interpretation of Chapter 15, 8-15.3?
MS. OKUMA: Okay. I'm going to address it from the standpoint of how this Department was set up as
it was, as it was spun off from Public Works. And these two functions that were spun off from
Public Works were based on the Charter and it has existed for many, many, many, many years,
even before the creation of the new Department. And if you look at our organization chart the
pollution that this Department was tasked with controlling or basically managing was solid
waste, which is the waste that ends up in landfills. It includes our refuse collection, recycling
and abandoned vehicles. Those are our basic functions. That's what's represented in our, all of
our documentation, our organizational charts. The other pollution is wastewater, and these two
functions has, as I said, have existed within the County for quite a long time, and these were the
two functions that were spun off from Public Works and put into this Department and basically
there's only two divisions in this Department. One is solid waste and one is wastewater.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Under the same section of the Charter it says protection of
the unique beauty of Maui County. For Hawaiians and people that live in Hawaii the taro fields
are especially a unique beauty of our County. So what is your response to that?
MS. OKUMA: You know, I'm, I'm not here to argue or take any position on the bill itself. Only, so...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Well, Director, this is about the Charter that you continually -MS. OKUMA: Correct. So...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --cite.
MS. OKUMA: Correct. So the only thing that I'm here to tell you is that the concern that I have with
respect to enforcement. I'm not here to take any position in terms of the bill or what it means to
the community or the environment. But I think it important for people to know what our
operations are about, what we do as far as core services and what we can do and not to have the,
the expectation that somehow we have the expertise to come up with the rules or the regs and to
do any kind of enforcement in this area. People needed to, to at least be aware of that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Director, you say you don't want to take a position on the
bill, but you already have by saying that you cannot enforce it, which is part of the bill. So, you
know, I have to disagree with you that you don't take a position on it.

-27-

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, AGRICULTURE, AND
RECREATION COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
June 29, 2009

MS. OKUMA: And I'm, I'm sorry, I guess on that point we disagree. I'm not taking a position on, on
the substance of the bill. Yes, it's true, the only thing that I'm bringing up, which I think is
incumbent on me to let you know, is the problem I have with the enforcement provision. I feel
that it incumbent on me to at least let you know that that is an issue.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. I, I, the reason why the Environmental Management
Department was selected because it seemed to be the most appropriate Department. And
working with the Legislative Analyst and myself we thought that that would be the most
appropriate, and as you heard Councilmember Victorino also express he felt that that was the
closest to enforcing this. Now if you can't enforce it do you suggest another department?
MS. OKUMA: Well, I'm not in a position to make any kind of suggestion, but I will let you know that I
was in touch with the Big Island on their ordinance and they, in fact, had the same, very same
difficulty. They have also an Environmental Service Department which performs functions just
like ours does, and they too realized it was not the place, it was not the place to give enforcement
to their Environmental Service.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. But...
MS. OKUMA: But beyond that, you know, I feel that this is way outside of our expertise for me to even
give you an opinion on that. I can only speak from our Department.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Under the Maui County Code there are departments that
have enforcement authority. One is yours, one is Planning, one is Public Works and one is Water
Supply. So I'm asking you if you think your Department is not the appropriate one then who of
the other three?
MS. OKUMA: I, I can't, I can't give an opinion of those other departments. I, I think that's a whole
nother discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh. Okay.
MS. OKUMA: And as I said this is just something that I was made aware of just, just within the last few
days.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, and we did hear that already expressed. Thank you.
Mr. Corp. Counsel, under the same Charter under eight point, 8-15.3 of Chapter 15, Item No. 4,
if we didn't assign a department for enforcement in the bill, this section says that this Department
will perform such other duties and functions as shall be assigned by the Mayor. So if we left the
Environmental Management out, then the Mayor would have the responsibility to decide who of
the four departments she would assign? . . . (change tape, start 2B).. .
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MR. UEOKA: That, I'm not sure if it would, that would fall under the Charter, but if there was just an
administrative enforcement section, yeah, someone within the Administration would need to
decide -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Assign.
MR. UEOKA: --who be the enforcement arm, I guess.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Corp. Counsel. And just a couple more
questions, Madam Chair, if you'll allow me.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you. It's difficult to listen to, you know, our County
government say, with all the people that have come forward to testify and are very passionate
about, you know, banning GMO taro, to hear us as a government say we can't do it. It seems
that, you know, the community out there doesn't want to know how the County can't do it. They
want to know how the County can take proactive measures to do it, and so it's disappointing to
hear that. And I think as you mentioned, Madam Chair, this is a preemptive measure so that we
have a law that prevents, you know, the, and bans GMO kalo. But I think also we have to
remember that if we have this law and we're so concerned with enforcement now then are we
saying that we feel people will have the intention to violate the law so that we have to enforce it?
You know that, that brings up a concern for, for me. And, you know, regarding the Prosecutor's
Office I have to say, you know, I have the confidence in our Department of the Corporation
Counsel to legally advise us on, on what we need to incorporate in our bill. And we didn't seem
to have any previous problems or concerns, so I, too, am confused why the Administration
through the Managing Director requested the Prosecutor's Office. I, I think it's like we're saying
we're not confident with our Corporation Counsel, and I, as a Member, am confident with our
Corporation Counsel. And I think one final comment, Madam Chair, is that I think Member
Pontanilla, you know, brings up a good point and, and I think it was in this morning's paper that
he saw that and I, I too. But Senator English and Representative Carroll did bring up a measure
like that, but it was not successful in getting through the Legislature in this past session. So I
think they will reintroduce it again, that, I think that's their intention, and I think we need to be
strong in our own legislation and move forward on it. Mahalo, Madam Chair.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. And the Chair, anytime anyone wants the Chair to make their
recommendation I am more than happy to make my recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR JOHNSON: But I'll respect . . . (inaudible). . . Member Kaho'ohalahala was next.

-29-

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, AGRICULTURE, AND
RECREATION COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
June 29, 2009

VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. Corporation Counsel, just based on the, the
draft ordinance that was reviewed by your Department, my question is, is it inconsistent with the,
the, with the County Codes?
MR. UEOKA: No, it's consistent.
VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Is it inconsistent with our County Charter?
MR. UEOKA: No, I would not say so.
VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Then, Madam Chair, I think aside from what the
Department has raised as their own departmental concerns our job here is to create policy and
we're not here to take direction from the Department. I asked the Corporation Counsel if this bill
is inconsistent with our Charter and with our County Codes. He's answered and said no. We
passed and as Member Medeiros had stated earlier an authorization in, in Title 19 giving the
Environmental Management Department the authority to enforce. We gave it to them so that
they would have the ability to take action on issues that come before them. Here is an item that
we are trying to codify and put in place that gives her the authority through her enforcement to
take action. Aside from what she's brought to us today that is not of a concern for us. We have a
policy that we want to push through, and that to me is why we're here hearing this particular bill.
And so I want to not discount that the, the Department has concerns, but I do want to also
emphasize that as part of our powers as, as a legislative branch of government is to create policy
and we are in fact by this action seeking to create policy. And in that policy we are also hoping
that the Department of Environmental Management will also be the one to implement the
enforcement of this policy. And that's clearly not inconsistent with the Charter or with the
County Codes. So I appreciate the discussion that's been going on but I would like to continue
to move on to make a decision on this.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. And anytime, you know, if someone would wish to make a motion I would
entertain a motion that we pass forward the revised ordinance that has been passed out which is a
bill for an ordinance amending Title 20, Maui County Code, to prohibit genetically engineered
and recombinant DNA taro (kalo).
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chairman?
CHAIR JOHNSON: Is anyone going to make a motion? No?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Well I, I, I have a comment to make.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. And Member Kaho'ohalahala bring up pretty good
points but for me we better be sure in regards to, you know, if we pass this ordinance and
-30-

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, AGRICULTURE, AND
RECREATION COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
June 29, 2009

enforcement become a problem because the Department cannot handle then are we opening up
ourselves to any liabilities? That is one concern that I have. I don't know maybe Corporation
Counsel can provide me with some insights, you know, the cause of any liability should it
happen.
MR. UEOKA: I'm not quite sure. It'd be hard to say how we would be held liable for a situation like
that. I, I won't say we wouldn't be sued. That, you know, that'd be difficult to say. But as to the
extent of our liability I would, it would be on a case-by-case basis. We'd have to examine it
thoroughly depending on the circumstances of the situation.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. And, you know, if the Environmental Management area is
not an expert in administration, administering any enforcements then if there is a complaint how
do we handle them? Number one, they not ready. I, um, yep, you know, I know that for sure.
MR. UEOKA: From that's, I think that was Director Okuma's concern. As far as Corporation Counsel's
we, it would be difficult for us to say how she would or her Department would deal with a
complaint at this point or how any other department would deal with a complaint.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you. Member Molina had a question and then followed by Member
Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Question for Director Okuma on again the
enforceability aspect of this bill. You've had discussions with your, I guess, contemporaries on
the Big Island with how they're dealing with their, their ban?
MS. OKUMA: I had a conversation with Deputy Corporation Counsel on the Big Island who advises
the Environmental Service as well as the Council.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And what transpired from that conversation? How are they dealing
with this as far as . . .
MS. OKUMA: They said enforcement was an issue there too, but they did not feel it appropriate to give
enforcement to Environmental Services.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So who is the, I guess the agency or organization that oversees it?
MS. OKUMA: In that, in that case it's Criminal Enforcement.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Criminal.
MS. OKUMA: And I believe that that's basically police and Prosecutor's Office.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Were there any other details as far as cost and 'cause they had
to hire additional positions or .. .
MS. OKUMA: No, no. No further details were discussed.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Madam Chair, if maybe at, through your signature if we could
get information from the Big Island as to how they're dealing with it?
CHAIR JOHNSON: I, you know, I think that they're taking a different approach which is seeking prior
to anything else a criminal prosecution. I've discussed it with Staff already and my biggest
concern is that we have to do preemptive legislation. Enforcement at this point in time would
not be required, because it's been revealed through testimony and through everything that we've
been, you know, given as far as information that this is a non-issue right now. So the reason in
passing this forward would be to put a law in place to basically grandfather the County of Maui
so that if legislation is not passed at the State level and they take away this County's authority
I'm frankly more concerned about protecting our home rule than I am about some confusion or
some, you know, lack of direction about what has taken place in the past with regard to the
Administration. We are the legislators. We're charged with the responsibility of directing the
actions of Administration and we will give them the tools. All they need to do is ask us. We
don't have the authority to amend the budget. So at this point for the Chair it is a non-issue. I
respect everyone's opinion, but I very much also respect our authority and our homerule and
frankly I don't care what the Big Island does. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Well, Madam Chair, respectfully I disagree with you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: I know.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I want as much information as I can before moving on anything. I
mean this is, there's some issues we got to deal with here, and frankly I'm not going to support
anything out of Committee today until we get the answers to my questions. I mean we need to
make sure we get all the facts first and hash out all these issues before moving out, moving
anything out.
CHAIR JOHNSON: I respectfully understand -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: --and, you know, the Chair respectfully disagrees. Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. I want to go back to the Charter, Page 29 of the Charter.
And again Mr. Medeiros spoke in regards to the Charter saying supervise Environmental
Management in control of pollution, including recycling, litter control and protection of the
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unique beauty of Maui County. Cheryl, I think that whoever penned this area, I think in it when
they said that the protection of the unique beauty of Maui County, probably was concerned about
our environment. And maybe this Department, Madam Chair, should start developing some
environmental expertise in this area. I think what you stated about this was a preemptive policy
statement and I want to read to my fellow Council Members and a lot of you were not here. But
I want to read from a nuclear energy deal that we passed years back. And it says, this chapter is
intended to maintain a clean and healthy environment for present and future generations in the
County of Maui, to protect health and safety of residents and visitors alike from the dangers of
accidents involving the transport, storage and citing of nuclear materials, reactors or weapons
within the County of Maui, and to protect the general health, safety and comfort and welfare of
its citizens from the misuse of nuclear energy. And it's under the prohibitions area it says, it shall
be unlawful for any person to A, transport radioactive materials or nuclear weapons within or
through the County or across its archipelagic waters. We know and we've had many nuclear
submarines come and visit Maui County and I think specifically the Lahaina shore waters.
Similarly, this is a County law so for those of us that say that this statement, this preemptive
statement, I think it's similar to this nuclear ban we have here. And we say, oh, we want
someone to police it. If we want to be consistent as our tongues have stated then maybe we need
to look at this nuclear bill again and say that who in Maui County is policing this and I see no
one. Finally, I think every one of us agree that GMO taro doesn't even exist here, Madam
Chairman. So for us to say we want more information despite of some of the policies that we've
taken here in Maui County I think, well, you know, I, I, I, if somebody wants to fmd out I can
understand that, but I don't think that we not, I think we need to take action on this today.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. As everybody knows I'm always looking
for a win-win. I can see the way the wind is blowing. Would it be, because, you know, we really
do have time here. We've been told repeatedly that this is preemptive, that there is no, nothing
going on at the moment. And would it be such a big deal if we were to ask for the information
we want in writing and maybe have to wait a few weeks to make a decision? I think it might be
a prudent thing to do and you'll get the result you want. Because as things stand now I feel
there's, you know, a bit of unease about moving this forward. I just wanted to offer that.
CHAIR JOHNSON: And, and the Chair will before making any recommendation then also take a break
to consider our options. Because there is a way to accomplish both receipt of information as well
as satisfy the questions that have been raised today. And there will be full opportunity for public
testimony also at two readings of this bill.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair'?
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. Member Baisa?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Except that, you know, we have tried very hard to take all that kind of
action off of the Council floor, and so it would probably work a lot better in Committee. Thank
you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Member Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. Chairman, I, you know, I agree with Member Baisa, you
know, taking up this at another Committee meeting, because I, you know, I too is interested in
receiving comments from our prosecuting attorney. But more importantly I just want to get some
information from Environmental Management, what it would take to do this enforcement,
manpower as well as, you know, actually the resources to do this work should we go ahead and,
and ban genetic engineering kalo here in Maui County.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. You know in, in light of the fact that we
have now talked about Chapter 8 and nuclear energy, you know, that the Council when it took up
action to create this policy had a vision that they wanted to ensure that some of the things they
see to, to be protected in the long term would be placed in and codified into law. But, but having
that already done, here we are now trying to do something for GMO taro so if you want to look
at the parallels here, we have gone so far as to prevent in our policy for Maui County any nuclear
kinds of weapons or materials here for our County and as part of our policies. But we would
now balk at the thought of preventing GMO kalo, you know, so. So therein lies the, you know,
the spectrum of where policy can go, and the question still remains, who's enforcing these? You
know and if that is the major question then we should have asked that question about
enforcement over nuclear energy in that, in that policy. And, and having no, no concerns,
Environmental Management, is that an area that you would be responsible for enforcement?
MS. OKUMA: I don't believe so and I'm not familiar with what that ban looks like. But that's
defmitely way outside of our expertise.
VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: But would you consider it partly involving environment?
MS. OKUMA: Not, not given how my, again I know we've had a lot discussion of the Charter but not
from the read of the Charter. You know, if you look at the Charter it's not specific in terms of
genetically engineered taro or nuclear ban. And so I think that goes to the issue that
Councilmember Pontanilla raised which is what exposure do we have if we engage in some sort
of enforcement and somebody takes us to court over that? And yet we don't have specific
language that covers that but so...
VICE-CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: You know the flip side of that would be is that a department
take a look at what they would incorporate in terms of having to meet those challenges.
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MS. OKUMA: Well -VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: That's another approach.
MS. OKUMA: --to be, that's true but to be real frank in terms of the functions we have, wastewater and
solid waste, those are challenging as we stand today in terms of what's needed in the future and
what we're trying to do today. Just to do those core functions and to begin to try to add other
environmental components...
VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Director, you've already made that point over and over again
so.
MS. OKUMA: Right. So, you know, I just...
VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: But I want to ask you towards a more proactive position as the
Director for Environmental Management. In the view of who we look to in this County for
assistance in helping to take care of some of these issues that we consider to be environmental
and fit within the confines and the language of the Charter that we would hope that it would be
something that you would take a proactive position in, in trying to fmd ways to do it. And this is
not saying that you have no expertise. This is saying that perhaps it's time for us to find a way to
incorporate some of these areas that are becoming important areas for our communities and not
take a position that I'm sorry, I only deal with solid waste and wastewater but my title is
management for environmental concerns so.
MS. OKUMA: I believe that those are larger discussions that you need to take up.
VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Larger or smaller? I'm just suggesting -MS. OKUMA: Larger, larger...
VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --that's the area you should -MS. OKUMA: Larger, larger...
VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --. . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Madam Chair, point of order.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Don't talk over one another please.
MS. OKUMA: If I may fmish? I believe these are larger issues that you may want to discuss with the
Mayor, because we all report to the Mayor and we're a part of that, that Administration.
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VICE-CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. And I want to just remind ourselves that we are the
policymakers of this County.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, and the Chair recognizes that. The Chair would request probably a five
minute recess. Do not leave the room. I just want to consult with Staff. So if there are no
objections we will take a five-minute recess. We will reconvene at 11:25. Meeting in recess.
. . .(gavel). . .

RECESS: 11:20 a.m.
RECONVENE: 11:29 a.m.
CHAIR JOHNSON: . . .(gavel). . . The Maui County Committee on Economic Development,
Agriculture, and Recreation will come back to order. Members, before we left we had some
issues that the Chair was trying to resolve, because obviously there are questions that some of us
have that, you know, in regard to this bill and this bill is very important. I would ask because
most of our questioning involves enforcement, involves a scope of information that we may not
be able to directly address, I would respectfully ask and this is a request being made by the Chair
if there are any objections to my having Dr. Lorrin Pang who is skilled, he is completely
knowledgeable about the things that happen on the Big Island, the problems associated with
enforcement. And he would also I think help our Administration to understand what the scope of
this problem is. I would just ask respectfully that he be called forward if you do not object. And
that if there are questions that the Members have with regard to enforcement that he be permitted
to answer them. Is there any objection to that?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much. Dr. Pang, if you could please come to the podium
and then I'll allow Members to address the questions. 'Cause obviously this is the biggest area
of concern. Thank you, Members.
MR. PANG: Thank you. I'll speak as a private citizen again. But I ran the Walter Reed Laboratory for
Enterics in 1997 to the year 2000. We dealt exactly with this kind of issue, detection, not so
much enforcement but detection, valid detection of contamination or as the industry calls it
adventitious spread. This issue didn't come up on the Big Island till after they passed their rule
so I understand your preemptive position. The, the main areas of enforcement I break it down to
valid detection, and then somebody else would try to figure out the punishment, who to punish
and how much to punish. They're facing the same issue for the rice contamination on the
mainland, and right now the existing bills and cost is $1.2 billion. I just want to talk about valid
detection first, okay? There's essentially three ways or four ways you can go about this. You put
in a mutational gene sequence into the genome, the whole bunch of genes, you put in something
novel. Usually or almost all the time you put in marker genes that make marker proteins. Those
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markers are to make detection easy. So you got two ways to detect it now. You can detect the
marker gene, little more expensive, two or three hundred dollars, I have the reference for you.
commercial labs will help you set it up or you can detect the product of the marker gene, the
protein, that's about $6 a test. Okay. How do we do this? Well I was asked to look for the
contamination of genetically modified papaya on, in the Big Island and it's a high school project,
we just fmished last week. And you go and you ask the kids to bring in a couple hundred
papayas and you tell me all the about the papaya, where it is that you intend to eat it, blah, blah,
blah. And the marker, we're detecting the protein, the, the product of the gene. It's this little
thing. We keep it cool, not even refrigerated and you keep it cool, and we always run positive
and negative controls, and we find that about half the papaya they bring in is positive. The cost
of that test was provided by the University of Hawaii, the commercial production of it if I did ask
them to make it would have been about $6 a test and the test is expensive 'cause I asked the kids
to bring in about 100 samples, so it's $600. But that's how we do a screening, cheap, pretty good
test, but once you fmd it, that this papaya is producing something unusual if you want you can do
the PCR which detects the marker gene and that costs about two or three hundred dollars per
shot. You don't have to do it on all the ones that are positive but just on a sub-sample. And this
is how we do screening with backup confirmation. This is for products that are produced
commercially or scientifically in another jurisdiction where it is sanctioned, say Honolulu. They
don't ban it in Honolulu so they're doing this. They would be mandated by the University of
Hawaii Biosafety Committee which we had problems with for a few decades but they're
supposed to be up to snuff They would tell you how they're trying to control it, tell you what
the marker systems are, and they would actually, like GM papaya, produce the marker system
maybe free of charge and to, to, to look for spread beyond that. The USDA and Department of
Ag would require it also, so that's the source who would produce the technical part. There's one
issue which we haven't addressed yet, that's commercial things and good intention in science. If
somebody actually wanted to make agroterrorism and mess up all your kalo forever and you
don't know what the genes are and you don't know what the product is, then it's hard to test for
something you don't know what you're looking for. Technically you could sequence the whole
thing and say this is abnormal, abnormal kalo compared to what? Compared to all the library of
kalo which we don't have. This I believe is what the Prosecuting Attorney was referring to. But
that case it would show up as bizarre taro, visibly bizarre, we would ask for a lab test and who
would enforce? The FBI. They, as far as I'm concerned, all the meetings I go to Homeland
Security that's called ag terrorism, bioterrorism, ag terrorism and they are supposed to track
down maliciousness, clandestine terrorist activities. That's kind of like a lower, lower risk, lower
chance. I'm more dealing with known products where you're mandated to make available cheap
marker systems. So I'll just end there if you have any questions.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you. Members...
MR. PANG: I'll have to reference this for the cost.
CHAIR JOHNSON: I appreciate that. Member Medeiros.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Madam Chair. Dr. Pang, thank you for being here as a
resource person. So what you say fairly dispels what we heard from the Prosecutor's Office,
because I think he was referring to cost of doing DNA testing, costing in the thousands of
dollars. There's a big difference between DNA testing and genetic testing, is that correct?
MR. PANG: The DNA testing he was referring to, to run the whole sequence to look for aberrations.
PCR, polymerase chain reaction, what I'm familiar is, we look for just markers, five. When you
pick off these five that's it. That's two or three hundred dollars per test. And then the product of
the markers are like $6 a test. Your issue is how many tests we're going to do. So if you can
give me random samplings, you know, how do, how does Australia or Japan when they say no
GM food come in? They randomly test their food coming in with the products, markers of the
products. But if you wanted to do it you could do the whole sequence but that's awfully
wasteful. I mean why would you do that?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, you know, we've heard constantly in the deliberations on this
item, you know, from the Department and from the Administration that we don't have the
expertise to do this. But seems like a person like yourself that's very educated and experienced
in this field and the example you cite of testing it at a high school, so you had students with one
expert doing this testing for a very nominal fee. So don't you agree that we could somehow
either contract that part out or even have an expert like you on staff and doing it with assistance?
MR. PANG: Yes, that's correct. I mean I did it for Pahoa High School and these were learning disabled
high school students who are supposed to, this is their dose of science. Now the study hasn't
been published but when the UH surveyed for GM papaya they did the same methodology too.
We just asked different samples and different questions.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Dr. Pang. Because, you know, I, I think there's less of
a fear and a scare about enforcement now that you've brought that examples and information up.
Thank you for your testimony and for being here. Mahalo, Madam Chair.
MR. PANG: Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much. Any further questions of Dr. Pang? Member Molina, did
you have any questions . . .(change tape, start 3A). . . with regard...okay, fine. Thank you.
Yeah. I, I thought it might be helpful. I know that some of your, you know, it, because Dr. Pang
deals with this all the time it always appears to be very technical, but I think that one of the
things we could also look at as a County because we have the Focus Maui Nui, we also have the
MEDB, the high tech projects that are done by Project EAST. This may be something that
actually would be, I guess I see Dr. Pang. Did you want to clarify something?
MR. PANG: I just want to add that not only did the high school students do it, but the test was read by
eyeball, color change within an hour. So I wasn't charging back and forth and we don't say,
well, I'll call you up with the results, it was right there.
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CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. And, and I think that, you know, these are the options that we have. We don't
want to make more work for our departments, but by the same token we want to move forward
with something that is easily detectable as was spoken about by Dr. Pang, and we want to move
forward with something that is completely based in law. And the Chair has every assurance that
that is based in law. Because there are Members that have some concerns, I respect my
Committee Members because I take my direction from you, I have a couple different ways that
we can deal with this. We can look at deferring this item and then going through all of the
testimony and having people come from Molokai and going through this again, and I'm not sure
that that necessarily will result in, what would you say, a fleshing out of more information
coming into the record. That's one way that we can go. The other way would be to at least get
the support of the Committee Members to pass this on for first reading to the Council with the
understanding specifically that Member Molina's question with regard to response from the Big
Island and I believe Member Pontanilla's question from Ms. Okuma and Corporation Counsel,
that those two issues be addressed. So I'm looking for direction from you because I have no
problem with waiting until that information is received and then having this come to the full
Council with those questions being answered to the full satisfaction of my Committee Members.
Because irrespective of my opinion and I can state my opinion and I don't ever want to force my
opinion on you because, you know, the majority of you rule. But I want to seek direction from
you. Are you comfortable if I approach it that way to just basically move this on but not post it
until such time that we do have the answers to those questions? Because I believe that they do
need to be answered. So I, I leave it up. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair. For me I'm more comfortable with your
first option. I know it may be an inconvenience for some to come back and testify, but, you
know, we want to, just for me I think we want to be sure that we get all the info and I'd prefer to
try to work out all the issues here in Committee. And, you know, if we put something in, pass
something out of here, it goes to Council, then we end up getting in a very prolonged discussion.
And, and the Chair has made it clear, very clear to us, to all of us Committee Chairs that work
out the issues in Committee. So I'm just, my preference is I don't think it would hurt to have just
one more meeting to go through this and get all the issues that have been brought up here today.
And that's just my preference, Madam Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: And, Member Baisa, you had a comment?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, I support Member Molina's position. I think it's better we hash it
out in Committee. I think that, you know, the questions that remain are more technical, legal
kinds of things, and better we deal with it than we try to deal with it on first reading because, you
know, that's just not good to do.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Member Kaho'ohalahala.
VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Do I have a question?
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CHAIR JOHNSON: No. I just wanted to know if, you know, your preference in dealing with this.
VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Oh. Can I ask Corporation Counsel one question?
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, certainly.
VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Because in, in trying to come to your, your recommendation.
In, in the bill itself it allows in two sections or one section actually, administrative rules. And in
this particular portion this will really allow the Department to fine tune or fmd ways in which the
Department seeks now to implement this. Is that correct?
MR. UEOKA: Yes, correct.
VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So in essence what we've allowed for in the bill is to allow the
Department to find ways in meeting the intent of this policy and finding ways to administer it?
MR. UEOKA: That's generally the, how it, why you would put administrative rules in to allow the
Department to, I guess the more, the finer points.
VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then, Madam Chair, it just makes sense to me that
we've given provisions within this ordinance to allow the Department to come up with those
areas of which the Department feels that they are not adequately capable of, of, of implementing
or administering. And if there is a lack then in the administrative rules, it would be this portion
that would allow them now to find ways of, of, of handling those questions I think that were
raised. And otherwise, you know, it's, I think everything is intact here, and my, my sense would
be that I think we can move it on but...
CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you. Thank you very much. I know you're not a Member of the
Committee but, you know, please express your opinion.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I just wanted to ask a question, too, following up on Member
Kaho'ohalahala's question. For Corp. Counsel, under the same section when says pursuant to
Chapter 91 does that, does that give any indication about a time period that the Department has
to create these administrative rules or is it left open?
MR. UEOKA: It's left open.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So, so they, they have the time they need to do this; in other
words, it's because we're not setting a period of time they got to come up with it, right?
MR. UEOKA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. UEOKA: Technically, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you. Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Madam Chairman. I, too, would support the
recommendation that Member Molina had. You know, my questions to the Department basically
is the impact on the Department and the resources that we need to provide for the Department.
Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: And, and, you know, and the Chair, with your permission, will just state that I
respect that the majority rules on this Committee and I will take my direction from you. I think
it's a little frustrating to the community when, you know, we can't come to decisions, but
irrespective of that, you know, I will respect your wishes and I will defer this item if there are no
objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.

ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Member Nishiki, you had a comment?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I guess I'm more straightforward about things that I witness and I see.
And it is not against any Council Member but what I've seen in the past where thousands of
acres get zoned and questions brought up by many Committee Members and see that these
answers [sic] are left unanswered. It concerns me. Especially today in an area, kalo, where I
think the ordinance is really simple. And I only say this to those of you Members that I sit with,
if you're going to constantly say with not enough information, whenever you sit in that
chairmanship that you will also follow through on these requests. It angers me because
sometimes I think that how one operates his or her Committee is totally different when one sits
outside a Committee and then asks for this type of information. That's all. There's a lot of
duplicity and it all depends upon where you sit.
CHAIR JOHNSON: I know and, and I respect that. The Chair would just state, I want to be very clear
about the information so that there's no misunderstanding. Member Molina, what specifically is
your request of the Chair through Staff to get the information from the Big Island? Do you,
what, what is the nature of your request?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, Madam, just basically his comments. I, I missed the last, my
understanding was, I guess, this Mr. Hanano I guess came last week Thursday. I wasn't here to
hear his comments, but I'd like to get things memorialized, put it on palapala, in writing. 'Cause
sometimes if it's just only done verbally, you know, it's the, it's hard to interpret things that are
just said verbally, because then you're going to hear it from someone else said this. So I want to
see it in writing.
CHAIR JOHNSON: So you want a request from him and, and...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. What, what they're doing to enforce and -CHAIR JOHNSON: And, and...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --any other issues in terms of...
CHAIR JOHNSON: He's with our Prosecutor's Office. He's not with the Big Island.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. But see, see, this is what I was not clear on the understanding.
. . .(inaudible). . .

CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. No, no. That's why I was kind of puzzled by your question -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
CHAIR JOHNSON: --earlier that he is not, he is, he was requested to be here by our Managing Director
Morrison to address issues that he potentially sees with this bill. It was not my request. And the
communication with, in fact I think, Mr. Taguchi, were you in contact with anyone from Big
Island?
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Johnson, I was not in contact with anyone from Big Island. The Big Island
ordinance has been transmitted to Committee through Councilmember Nishiki's transmittal
during the last Committee, the initial meeting on Thursday. So the Big Island ordinance is in.
My understanding from prior testimony was that, and from looking at the Big Island ordinance it
does not designate enforcement, which department or entity that would enforce.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and that was where my confusion was coming in, because if we
designate where we want enforcement to go and then provide the resources. Because the only
way that we're going to know is through implementation of it, and that's the only way that
Ms. Okuma would know what the resources are that would be required once we implement.
That's where I was getting a little confused because, you know, the ordinance on its face just
doesn't in my opinion go far enough. But what you would like, Member Molina, then is you
would clarification from our Deputy or our, our Prosecuting Attorney's Office. And do you want
anything from the Big Island?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: If possible, Madam Chair, I think the more information the better.
And, you know, and I just want to make a statement, I make no apologies for asking for more
information. I mean it's incumbent upon us as responsible elected officials to ask for as much
information, and I know some people may get disappointed that the process takes a little longer.
But that's the process we have been given, it's called democracy, and as elected officials we have
the right to seek more information before making a decision. We want to make sure we, you
know, everything is thorough as much as possible. Those proverbial "I's" are dotted, "T's" are
crossed. So I make no apologies to asking for more information, Madam Chair.
CHAIR JOHNSON: And, and, you know, the Chair didn't mean to imply earlier that it wasn't important
to gather more information -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, no. Yeah.
CHAIR JOHNSON: --it's just simply that for me because I've already done my independent
investigation and through questioning the other day, I, I have a comprehensive or I feel I have a
comprehensive understanding. But not everyone feels as I do and I respect that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. I know my, my comments weren't aimed at you. It was just
that the statements -CHAIR JOHNSON: No, no, but, but that's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --made earlier.
CHAIR JOHNSON: And so those two areas, -MR. TAGUCHI: Chair'?
CHAIR JOHNSON: --are you clear, Staff?
MR. TAGUCHI: Just one clarification if I could. We, we will be drafting a letter to the County of
Hawaii. Did you want that to be addressed to the Mayor, Council, or both?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Both.
MR. TAGUCHI: Both. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Member Baisa.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you, Chair. I, I may be duplicating what Member Pontanilla
wants, but I think it's really important when we talk about providing resources to the
Department, whoever gets this, that we have some idea of what that is. Because it could very
minimal and it could be major so it'd be good if we could have a little information in regard to
that.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and I think it's going to be difficult, Member Baisa, for them to
determine exactly what resources they need until the implementation of the ordinance comes in.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Correct.
CHAIR JOHNSON: And unfortunately, it's simply because they don't know if there will be at any point
in time any enforcement issue.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, we might piggyback on to what Dr. Pang mentioned today -CHAIR JOHNSON: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --and kind of summarize what is going on, on the Big Island and we can
at least have some idea. Because if we're going to offer them resources we better have 'em.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and the Chair has no difficulty in providing them with the minutes of
this meeting so that they understand what the concerns are and also understand that this
Committee is willing to recommend whatever resources be placed at their disposal. Member
Kaho' ohalahala.
VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Madam Chair. I just want a clarification.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Earlier we started out with a, Member Medeiros submitting an
amended version -CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --of the bill. Just, have we actually acted on, what is the, the...
CHAIR JOHNSON: No, it's just we have not acted on anything. We've received that into the record
and then hopefully next time when we meet again everyone, including members of the public,
will have an opportunity to have reviewed that bill. We should have also received the
information in case there's any modifications required. But basically, I would be looking at,
unless there's any huge flaw in the way that bill is drafted, I would be looking at moving next
time that bill forward, the revised bill.
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VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So right now it's just a submitted amendment to the
Committee.
CHAIR JOHNSON: It's submitted. It's been received into the record but we have taken no action
whatsoever.
VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Madam Chair. I just have a question about the procedure.
So the deferral would mean that we start the process again with testimony and so forth?
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And the reason we would do that is we have expired the recess time
allowed?
CHAIR JOHNSON: It would be difficult to reconvene to find and, and not to mention the fact that I
can't get the information in sufficient time. So if we recess, we may be recessing for no reason
whatsoever because if we can't get the information that's being requested by the Members that
have concerns, I'm, I'm trying to be as respectful as I can of, you know, my Committee
Members and the time allotted. So that's, that's the only reason.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And thank you for that explanation. Yeah, because my
concern would be it may take more than one meeting depending on testimony again.
CHAIR JOHNSON: It, it could -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
CHAIR JOHNSON: --but the Chair will make sure that I have a, you know, at least if I can even work
with another Committee in trying to provide one day, you know, where I could shift things -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
CHAIR JOHNSON: --around, that would be ideal. And then we would begin in the morning and the
people who travel could at least be able to be heard.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. And just finally, Madam Chair, I agree with the Members as
far as, yeah, doing Committee work in Committee and not doing it in Council. However, this
Committee only has five Members and its four Members that are not, four Council Members that
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are not Members. So I think when it does get to Council you're going to have a lot of
deliberation again, because you're going to have four Council Members that now will be voting
also so they'll have a lot of questions too. So I just wanted to make awareness of that. Mahalo,
Madam Chair.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, thank you very much. And the Chair hopes that next time when our
Committee meets on this issue again, and I would intend to post as quickly as possible so that the
information is fresh in our minds, that any Member of the Council is certainly welcome to attend
this meeting. Because I think if we want to do good legislation, if we want to have a
comprehensive understanding of an issue that is, you know, sometimes fraught with questions, I
think we should try to inform ourselves as much as possible. Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman
CHAIR JOHNSON: And your question?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Well, not, comment in regards to the Members, you know,
attending this meetings, the EAR, I seen all eight Members, eight Members out of the nine
attending this meeting so, you know, a lot of information from them also. In regards to the
questions that I had from the, you know, I think Mr. Molina indicated from our Prosecuting
Attorney, you know, he cited three areas that he was very unsure of, prohibition, penalty, as well
as administrative enforcement. He also mentioned about issues with State statute, definitions,
and, you know, how to prosecute and how costly it is. And from the Department would be the
resources that is required to enforce this ordinance. And, you know, on the third sheet of the
ordinance it says here the ordinance shall take effect upon its approval so we better be ready once
it's approved. So that's my concern. Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. And, and the Chair will also work with the Corporation Counsel to clarify
anything that came up during this questioning period. So, Members, are there any more
announcements, anything further? If not, I thank you all for your participation, and excuse me if
I get cranky sometimes, but it's my right and privilege, yes. It's anyone's privilege. Yes,
Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair, before we adjourn today I want to thank you for your being
very sensitive to the Members and trying very hard to bring the matter to a successful
conclusion. Thank you very much.
CHAIR JOHNSON: You're welcome. And, you know, that is one of the things that is very difficult
sometimes when you are passionate about an issue and you want to see things move forward so
you can address other pressing issues plus not having these poor people have to spend their
hard-earned money to come back over from Molokai. Thank you. Yes, Member Molina?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And, Madam Chair, I just want to take a quick moment to thank you
as well for facilitating and to Member Medeiros for introducing this bill as, as we found that this,
you know, the issue of kalo is, is not a real simple one. It can be very complex and then of
course the legal aspects as well. But just as an example, all of the legislation that this Council
has passed recently related to affordable housing, the ban on plastic bags, those took several
meetings and, you know, and the bills were modified along the way. So this is just, this is
normal, it's part of the whole process and there's going to be debate. But, you know, like with
any, any good legislation sometimes it takes a little time and we want to be sure that we get as
much information as possible -CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. And -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --before making decisions.
CHAIR JOHNSON: --and perhaps the Chair had thought this would be an easier issue than it was
simply because we'd already passed the resolution in support of the State legislation. So my bad
for thinking this was a no-brainer. Anyway, thank you very much and thank you to Staff for their
participation. Thank you to the Administration for their participation and to Corporation
Counsel. This meeting is adjourned. . . . (gavel).. .
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